
  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: December 17, 2020 

TIME: 6:30 p.m. 

PLACE:  

MEETING AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment [3-MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of Agenda [ACTION] 

4. Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the Minutes of the November 19, 2020, Meeting [ACTION]  ..........................................  3 

5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) — None 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) 

(1) #20-13 — Ogden Township [ACTION]  ............................................................................  7 
(2) #20-14 — Ogden Township [ACTION]  ..........................................................................  17 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None 

6. Other Business 

a. Old Business — None 
b. New Business 

2021 Meeting & Deadline Schedules [ACTION]  .....................................................................  29 

7. Public Comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner Comment 

9. Adjournment 

Please note that the meeting will take place via . 
The login information is provided on the next page. 

The next meeting of the Lenawee County Planning Commission is scheduled for January 14, 2021 

  

mailto:gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us


 
 

 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/94048046854?pwd=R2xMYkJBSG9VS3Vpb0lkVERUYmlLZz09 
 
Meeting ID: 940 4804 6854 
Passcode: 534913 
One tap mobile 
+16468769923,,94048046854#,,,,,,0#,,534913# US (New York)  
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
Meeting ID: 940 4804 6854 
Passcode: 534913 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/ab8SRGj6ac 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/94048046854?pwd=R2xMYkJBSG9VS3Vpb0lkVERUYmlLZz09
https://zoom.us/u/ab8SRGj6ac


  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, November 19, 2020 

 ● Meeting ID: 985 4956 4366 ● Passcode: 607358 

 Members Present: Mr. Bob Behnke, Education Representative remotely from Adrian; Mr. Keith 
Dersham, LCPC Secretary, remotely from Adrian; Ms. Rebecca Liedel, LCPC 
Chair, remotely from Madison Township; Mr. Bruce Nickel (late), remotely; 
and Mr. Dale Witt, remotely from Raisin Charter Township 

 Members Absent: Ms. Karol (KZ) Bolton, Lenawee County Commission, and Mr. Ralph Tillotson, 
Lenawee County Commission 

 Others Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, LCPC Staff/Recording Secretary, and Nick Standiford 

Item 1 Call to order. Chair Liedel called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Item 2 Public comment. None. 

Item 3 Approval of Agenda. Staff submitted the 11/19/2020 meeting agenda for approval. 

Comm. Behnke made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to approve the November 19, 2020, 
meeting agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 4 Approval of Minutes. Staff submitted the 09/17/2020 meeting minutes for approval. 

Comm. Dersham made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to approve the September 17, 
2020, meeting minutes as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 5 Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) None. 

(1) #20-12 | Rollin Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning of a 

property (ID# RL0-685-0431-10) located on Elm Street in Section 10 (T6S-R1E) of the 
Township, south of Devils Lake. Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners 
to recommend approval with comments of the proposed ‘multiple family residential 
(RM)’ rezoning of the subject parcel, noting the confusion regarding the proffered 
conditions (see the staff report). 

Comm. Dersham made a motion, seconded by Comm. Behnke, to concur with the 
staff advisement to recommend approval with comments of the proposed ‘multiple 
family residential (RM)’ rezoning to the Rollin Township Board. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

(2) #20-13 | Fairfield Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed amendments to 

the Fairfield Township Zoning Ordinance, which add regulations regarding ‘large pho-
tovoltaic solar farm facilities’. Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to 

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #3 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
November 19, 2020, Meeting Minutes Page 2  
 

recommend approval with comments of the proposed amendment, noting the vari-
ous comments provided in the report (see the staff report). 

Comm. Witt made a motion, seconded by Comm. Behnke, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval with comments of the proposed zoning ordi-
nance text amendments regarding ‘large photo-voltaic solar farm facilities’ to the 
Fairfield Township Board. The motion passed unanimously. 

(3) #20-14 | Riga Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed amendments to the 

Riga Township Zoning Ordinance, which revise existing regulations regarding ‘large so-
lar energy facilities (solar farms)’, including the exclusion of properties enrolled in the 
PA 116 program and limiting installations to 50% of a parcel. Staff summarized his re-
port advising Commissioners to recommend approval with comments of the proposed 
amendment, noting the various comments provided in the report (see the staff re-
port). 

Comm. Dersham made a motion, seconded by Comm. Liedel, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval with comments of the proposed ‘large solar en-
ergy facilities (solar farms)’ rezoning to the Riga Township Board. Commissioners 
Behnke and Witt noted their concern over the exclusion of properties enrolled in the 
PA 116 program. The motion failed by a tie vote (Yes =2 (Dersham and Liedel); No = 2 
(Behnke and Witt); Abstain = 0; Absent = 3 (Bolton, Nickel, and Tillotson)). 

(4) #20-15 | Macon Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed amendments to 
the Macon Township Zoning Ordinance, which revise existing regulations regarding 
‘solar energy’. Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend 
approval of the proposed amendments, noting the various comments provided in 
the report (see the staff report). 

Comm. Behnke made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval of the proposed zoning ordinance text amend-
ments regarding ‘solar energy’ to the Macon Township Board. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s). 

(1) #20-13 | Macon Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for a 48-acre 

parcel (ID #MA0-102-2100-00) located in Section 2 (T5S-R5E) of the Township. Staff 
summarized his memo and advised them to recommend approval with comments of 
the agreement (see the staff report). 

Comm. Dersham made a motion, seconded by Comm. Nickel, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Macon Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

(2) #20-14 | Adrian Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for a 74-acre 

parcel (ID #ADO-109-4355-00) located in Section 9 (T6S-R3E) of the Township. Staff 
summarized his memo and advised them to recommend approval of the agreement 
(see the staff report). 

Comm. Behnke made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval of the PA 116 agreement to the Adrian Charter 
Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #4 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
November 19, 2020, Meeting Minutes Page 3  
 

(3) #20-15 | Adrian Township. Commissioners reviewed several applications for contigu-
ous parcels (ID #ADO 116 2325 00, #ADO 116 2575 00, #ADO 116 2975 00, and #ADO 
116 2000 00) containing 158.5 acres and located in Section 16 (T8S-R4E) of the Town-
ship. Staff summarized his memo and advised them to recommend approval with 
comments of the various agreements (see the staff report). 

Comm. Behnke made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreements to 
the Adrian Charter Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unani-
mously. 

(4) #20-16 | Adrian Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for a 50.4-acre 
parcel (ID #AD0-121-1300-00) located in Section 21 (T6S-R3E) of the Township. Staff 
summarized his memo and advised them to recommend approval with comments of 
the agreement (see the staff report). 

Comm. Behnke made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Adrian Charter Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unani-
mously. 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s). 

(1) Hillsdale County. Staff shared the Hillsdale County Planning Commission’s notice of 

intent to update the Hillsdale County Master Plan. Comm. Behnke asked staff to for-
ward the notice to the County Administrator. 

Item 6 Other Business. 

a. Old Business. Staff informed the Commission that Commissioners Witt, Nickel, and 
Behnke were reappointed through December of 2023 and thanked them for their service. 

b. New Business. None. 

Item 7 Public Comment. None. 

Item 8 Commissioner Comment. None. 

Item 9 Adjournment. The meeting adjourned at 7:20 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Grant E. Bauman, LCPC Recording Secretary 
 

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #5 



This page is intentionally blank. 

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #6 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

PA 116 FARMLAND AGREEMENT | FA #20-17 
 Applicant(s): Edward W. Posner 

11228 Sebring Highway 
Jasper, MI 49248 

 Date: December 10, 2020 

 Local Government: Lenawee County (Ogden Township) 

 Purpose: Enrollment application 

 Location: The subject property (ID #OG0-133-3100-00) is located in Section 33 of the Town-
ship (T8S, R4E) (see Figure 1). 

 Description: The subject property has an area of approximately 38 acres, all of which is culti-
vated for cash crops. The average gross annual income per acre is $450, well 
above the $200/acre minimum specified by MDARD (Michigan Department of 
Agricultural and Rural Development). The parcel contains no buildings.  

 Term: 10. 

 Future Land Use: The Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the subject property at 
the edge of an area recommended for ‘Intensive agricultural’ uses (see Figure 2). 

 Staff Comments: The applicants should consider/address various the following errors/omissions 
included in the application: 

 Append a copy of the most recent appraisal letter to the application. 

Staff Advisement: Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning Commis-
sion to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the PA 116 application to 
the Lenawee County Board of Commissioners, provided the applicant considers 
the comment/suggestion listed in the staff report. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the applicant/township. 

  

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #7 



Page 2 FA | #20-17 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2 
County Future Land Use 

 

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #8 



Page 3 FA | #20-17 
 

Figure 3 
USDA Aerial Photograph 

 
 

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #9 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #10 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #11 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #12 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #13 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #14 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #15 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #16 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

PA 116 FARMLAND AGREEMENT | FA #20-18 
 Applicant(s): Edward W. Posner 

11228 Sebring Highway 
Jasper, MI 49248 

 Date: December 10, 2020 

 Local Government: Lenawee County (Ogden Township) 

 Purpose: Enrollment application 

 Location: The subject property (ID #OG0-134-4780-00) is located in Section 34 of the Town-
ship (T8S, R4E) (see Figure 1). 

 Description: The subject property has an area of approximately 37½ acres, all of which is culti-
vated for cash crops. The average gross annual income per acre is $450, well 
above the $200/acre minimum specified by MDARD (Michigan Department of 
Agricultural and Rural Development). The parcel contains no buildings. 

 Term: N/A. 

 Future Land Use: The Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the subject property at 
the edge of an area recommended for ‘Intensive agricultural’ uses (see Figure 2). 

 Staff Comments: The applicants should consider/address various the following errors/omissions 
included in the application: 

 Question #19. Specify the number of years the agreement will cover. 

 Append a copy of the most recent appraisal letter to the application. 

Staff Advisement: Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning Commis-
sion to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the PA 116 application to 
the Lenawee County Board of Commissioners, provided the applicant considers 
the comments/suggestions listed in the staff report. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the applicant/township. 

  

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #17 



Page 2 FA | #20-18 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2 
County Future Land Use 

 

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #18 



Page 3 FA | #20-18 
 

Figure 3 
USDA Aerial Photograph 

 
 

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #19 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #20 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #21 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #22 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #23 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #24 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #25 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #26 



12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #27 



This page is intentionally blank. 

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #28 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

2021 MEETING & SUBMITTAL DEADLINE SCHEDULES 

The Lenawee County Planning Commission generally meets on the third (3rd) Thursday of each month unless otherwise indicated: 

2021 MEETING SCHEDULE 

LCPC Meeting Date LCPC Meeting Date LCPC Meeting Date LCPC Meeting Date 

Thursday, January 21, 2021 Thursday, April 15, 2021 Thursday, July 15, 2021 Thursday, October 21, 2021 

Thursday, February 18, 2021 Thursday, May 20, 2021 Thursday, August 19, 2021 Thursday, November 18, 2021 

Thursday, March 18, 2021 Thursday, June 17, 2021* Thursday, September 16, 2021 Thursday, December 16, 2021 

The monthly meeting of the Lenawee County Planning Commission begins at 6:30 pm in the Lenawee Room of the Human Services 
Building (1040 N. Winter Street, Adrian, Michigan). Please note that meetings may take place via Zoom due to the ongoing COVID-19 
pandemic. 

In order for staff to review zoning proposals and prepare reports for County Planning Commissioners in a timely manner, the LCPC re-
quires the submittal of requests prior to 12:00 noon on the following submittal dates in order to be considered on the corresponding 
meeting date. 

2021 MEETING & SUBMITTAL DEADLINE SCHEDULES 

Meeting Date Submittal Deadline Meeting Date Submittal Deadline 

Thursday, January 21, 2021 Wednesday, January 13, 2021 Thursday, July 15, 2021 Wednesday, July 7, 2021 

Thursday, February 18, 2021 Wednesday, February 10, 2021 Thursday, August 19, 2021 Wednesday, August 11, 2021 

Thursday, March 18, 2021 Wednesday, March 10, 2021 Thursday, September 16, 2021 Wednesday, September 8, 2021 

Thursday, April 15, 2021* Wednesday, April 7, 2021 Thursday, October 21, 2021 Wednesday, October 13, 2021 

Thursday, May 20, 2021 Wednesday, May 12, 2021 Thursday, November 18, 2021 Tuesday, November 10, 2021 

Thursday, June 17, 2021 Wednesday, June 9, 2021 Thursday, December 16, 2021 Wednesday, December 8, 2021 

* This is likely the date of the LCPC’s 2021 Annual Dinner. Any business before the Commission will be considered during a 5:00 pm meeting held at the location of 
the Dinner. 

12/17/2020 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #29 


